WEST MALLING PARISH COUNCIL

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON 25TH JULY 2018, 7.30PM AT VILLAGE HALL, NORMAN ROAD, WEST MALLING

Present: Cllr. Richard Byatt (Chairman)

Cllr. Keith Bullard Cllr. Min Stacpoole

Also present: Mr Mike North (co-opted member)

Minute			Action by	Action	Response
18/416	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE - Cllr. Barkham, Cllr. Merchant, Cllr. Smyth				
18/417	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - none				—
10/417	- Holle				-
18/418	MINUTES of the meeting held on 26th June with 2018 - were approved with one amendment at 18/368 which should have read 25th July rather than 24th June.				
18/419	MATTERS ARISING from the minutes not otherwise on the agenda:- 18/367.2 - Local Green Space Designation, Cllr Byatt and Stacpoole have started to compile an up to date list of green spaces.	RB MS			
18/420	TMBC LOCAL PLAN				┼
10/420	THIBO LOOAL I LAN				
	 Meeting of the Planning, Transportation & Advisory Board took place at T&MBC on 24th July. The draft Local Plan was agreed by the Board on a 6:5 majority with the Chairman having the casting vote; three councillors abstained. The draft report will now be considered by T&MBC as follows - Cabinet on the 3rd September and Full Council on the 12th September. The new National Planning Policy Framework was published yesterday which confirms that 24th January 2019 is the deadline for Local Plan submission to the Inspector if plans are to be considered under the current housing figures. Submissions will be collated by T&MBC and sent to the Inspector. Parish Councils are being urged to comment on all sites that were featured in the call for sites. WMPC has submitted their initial Regulation 19 response – this can be revised. It was agreed outside of committee that the proposed Bellway development in Lavenders Road be opposed and this was added to the WMPC response. This decision was ratified. See below for Regulation 19 response. 				
18/421	WEST MALLING NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN T&MBC have suggested that issues raised in the WMPC Reg 19 response could be				
	addressed via a Neighbourhood Plan. General discussion regarding information / views and opinions previously collated from residents. It was agreed to reform the sub - committee. Clerk to email Councillors.	Cler	k	✓	
18/422	PLANNING APPLICATION – NEW BUILDING APPROVALS				

422.1	TM/18/01368/FL - Mr H Visser 17 Epsom Close West Malling Ground floor front extension.		
	Granted		
	[West Malling Planning Committee had objected to this application]		
422.2	TM/18/01271/FL - Mr & Mrs Rhys 10 Woodland Close West Malling ME19 6RR Single storey with pitched rear extension, conversion of garage to habitable room & raising of garage roof.		
	Granted		
	[West Malling Planning Committee had had no objections].		
422.3	TM/18/01074/FL - Mr & Mrs Cunning 273 London Road West Malling ME19 5AE Build new rear extension at first floor level.		
	Granted		
	[West Malling Planning Committee had had no objections].		
422.4	TM/18/00515/FL - The Farmhouse 97 High Street West Malling ME19 6NA Remove existing close boarded fencing and erect 1.2m high oak post and rail fencing at rear of premises; new landscaping works to parking bays including new resin bound gravel with granite setts edging.		
	Granted		
	[West Malling Planning Committee had had no objections to this application, however did seek reassurance that the neighbouring properties would not be impacted from increased noise from the seating area].		
422.5	TM/18/00664/RM - Mr Chris Hunter Adjacent 45 King Hill West Malling ME19 4PL Reserved Matters Application pursuant to outline planning permission TM/16/00865/OA: Erection of a detached dwelling – revised plans.		
	Approved		
	[West Malling Planning Committee had objected to this application on the grounds of size, scale and close proximity to neighbours]		
422.6	TM/18/01232/OA - Dr Charlotte Cronk Land adjoining 121 Teston Road West Malling Outline application for the erection of 2 dwellings.		
	Granted outline planning permission		
	[West Malling Planning Committee had objected to this application due to the loss of agricultural land in this semi-rural location].		
422.7	TM/18/01230/FL- Mr & Mrs Woodbridge 27 Offham Road West Malling ME19 6RB Demolition of existing rear conservatory, replacement single storey rear extension and roof dormer extension to rear, all together with associated internal and external alterations.		
	Granted		
	[West Malling Planning Committee had had no objections].		
18/423	PLANNING APPLICATION REFUSALS		
	There were no planning application refusals		
18/424	TREE APPLICATION APPROVALS		
424.1	TM/18/01173/TNCA - St Mary's Abbey 52 Swan Street West Malling ME19 6JX Leylandii x 5 – to fell		

	Granted		
	[West Malling Planning Committee had no comments to make about this application]		
424.2	TM/18/01223/TNCA – Miss Natalie Richardson 38 Police Station Road. West Malling ME19 6LL Fell tree in back garden.		
	Granted		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee did not object to the application but made the following comments. 'The committee accept that the tree is too large for the plot but would ask that if at all possible the tree be retained and be reduced to a smaller more manageable size.'		
18/425	TREE APPLICATION REFUSALS		
	There were no tree application refusals		
18/426	BUILDING PLANNING APPLICATIONS		
426.1	TM/18/01372/LB - Mrs G Reeve Tudor Cottage 134 High Street West Malling Installation of 2 externally mounted roller shutters to be fitted to the first floor rear windows. The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning application and has decided that it objects to this application. The Committee are of the opinion that this is an inappropriate modification to a listed building		
400.0	TRAIADIDAE 20/EL Mas C. Cood EQ Delico Chetica Dood West Melling Construction of front		
426.2	TM/18/01520/FL - Mrs S Seed 52 Police Station Road West Malling Construction of front porch, 3 dormer windows and french side doors		
	The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning application and has decided that it does not object to this application.		
426.3	TM/18/01532/FL & TM/18/01533/LB - Mr & Mrs Cox 108 High Street West Malling		
	Extensions and conversion from single dwelling to create three apartments		
	The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning application and has decided that it objects to this application for the following reasons:		
	The committee are of the opinion that this application amounts to an over- development of the site.		
	 As there is no parking within the curtilage of 108 High Street, this application, if approved, would therefore worsen the already difficult on street parking situation. 		
	 The committee are concerned about the limited access as there is only one access to and from this property. 		
	The committee are also concerned about the means of escape in the event of a fire.		
400.4	TRAMODAGANEL Made Charlette Constitution CO Colors II Constitution CO		
426.4	TM/18/01611/FL - Mr R Gluck The Coach House 66 St Leonards Street West Malling Side extension to form new dining room and extended kitchen		
	The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning application and has decided that it does not object to this application.		

18/427	TREE PLANNING APPLICATIONS		
427.1	TM/18/01475/TPOC – Mr M Blanning 48 Town Hill West Malling ME19 6QN G1 Lime x 3 – remove epicormic growth up to 14m above tree base.		
	The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning application and has decided that it does not object to this application.		
427.2	TM/18/01508/TNCA – More Park RC School Lucks Hill West Malling T1 Common Oak – remove the significant dead, dying and suspect branches present within entire crown & lift low crown overhanging the school building only, to provide a 3m clearance by the removal of secondary laterals only. T2 Sycamore – remove the significant dead, dying and suspect branches present within crown.		
	The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning application and has decided that it does not object to this application.		
427.3	TM/18/01352/TPOC - Mrs K Dyer 56 Town Hill West Malling Fell Horse Chestnut due to unsafe level of decay below main union and replant.		
	The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning application and has decided that at this stage it objects to this application. The Committee commented as follows: As this is such an important tree in the townscape of West Malling, we would ask that a second (and independent) tree inspection report be sought to establish if this tree is indeed		
	diseased to the point that it requires felling.		
427.4	TM/18/01436/TNCA - West Malling School Norman Road West Malling Large weeping willow – fell tree in sections using roping techniques to prevent any damage or undue impact to features below. Final cut top to be made to fence height due to tree management and light improvement.		
	The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning application and has decided that it does not object to this application.		
427.5	18/01525/TNCA - Bower House 22 West Street West Malling ME19 6QX T1 Holly – trim & reduce back to previous points, T2 Lilac – reduce height by approx. third, 3 Mature Beech – trim lowest limb growing over road towards number 17 by approx. 1 to 2 metres, T4 Bamboo – completely remove, T5 2x Privett & 1 Elderberry – trim to previous points, T6 2x Cotoneaster – reduce by approx. 2 metres, T7 Purple Plum – remove dead wood, balance crown & remove original green limbs, T8 Purple Plum – side back & remove limb rubbig on garage and T9 Acer – completely remove		
	The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning application and has decided that it does not object to this application.		
427.6	TM/18/01716/TNCA - The Old Stable Building Old Parsonage Ct West Malling T1 Sycamore – fell to ground level		
	The Planning Committee commented as follows:		
	West Malling Parish Council Planning Committee met on the 25 th July to discuss this planning		

	application and has decided that it objects to this application for the following reason:		
	This is a healthy tree and a valuable feature of the Conservation Area; we see no reason why		
	this tree should be felled.		
18/428	RESHAPE HOUSE - SECTION 106 MONIES		
	Awaiting response from T&MBC as to whether or not they will consult with the Parish Council as to how and where the Section 106 monies will be spent. It was agreed that the Parish Council should put together a proposal that can be forwarded to T&MBC for their consideration.		
	Cllr Byatt drew members' attention to pages 178–180 of Regulation 19 Local Plan Pre Submission Publication which outlines off site open space provision. See Link:		
	https://democracy.tmbc.gov.uk/documents/s31895/Appendix%201%20- %20draft%20Local%20Plan%20-%20Regulation%2019%20Submission%20Publication.pdf		
18/429	LAVENDERS ROAD – PROPOSED BELLWAY APPLICATION.		
	[This item is not on the agenda] Leaflets have recently been distributed to streets within West Malling advising residents of Bellway's intention to submit an outline application for development on Land East of Lavenders Road. Cllr. Byatt to meet with residents directly affected by any application and the possibility of a public meeting was discussed. [Subsequent to the meeting a public meeting date of 15th August was agreed]		
18/430	PLANNING ENFORCEMENT		
430.1	Current investigations: There are no current West Malling investigations		
430.2	Potential new investigations None		
40/404	OUTSTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE BURLIS		
18/431	QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC none		
18/432	QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS none		
18/433	TMBC AREA 2 PLANNING COMMITTEE		
	Next meeting date is the 15 th August 2018.		
	Date of next meeting: 28th August 2018 at West Malling Village Hall, Norman Road		
	There being no further business, the Chairman thanked members for attending and closed the meeting at 9.41 pm		
	Signed		
	Date		

WEST MALLING PARISH COUNCIL

RESPONSE TO THE REG 19 DRAFT OF THE TONBRIDGE & MALLING LOCAL PLAN 16th July 2018

West Malling Parish Council welcomes the efforts of the Borough Council to make the Government's requirement for 6,600 extra houses more bearable. However, we point out that the Tonbridge part of the Borough, which represents one third of Tonbridge & Malling's population, is set to have an additional 1,042 houses in the period to 2031, only 15% of the total. We believe that this imbalance should be addressed. The Tonbridge area should not be insulated from housing need merely because Borough Green has been included in the same housing market area.

West Malling Parish believes there are four pressing Community Needs with which we would like the assistance of the Council in incorporating supportive policies within the Local Plan:

- 1 The need to protect the historic town of West Malling by extending the Green Belt around it.
- 2 A chronic shortfall of car parking places for workers in the town.
- 3 The urgent need to establish a firm future for a GP surgery in West Malling preferably in a town centre location.
- 4 Lack of housing available for rent at an affordable price particularly for young people who have a long association with our town.

We have dealt with the Local Plan development site proposals in relation to each of these needs below.

Green Belt extension

This is one of the two biggest issues in West Malling. The Parish Council has supported the extension of the Green Belt for many years, including at the last Review of the Local Plan.

We are therefore delighted to welcome the Borough Council's proposal to extend the Green Belt generally to London Road and Wateringbury Road. We believe that this boundary will:

- a) provide a strong line in the landscape to form a defensible edge of the Green Belt
- b) provide a green lung to surrounding communities
- c) help to prevent West and East Malling merging with Kings Hill, Leybourne and Larkfield
- d) protect the historic town of West Malling.

During the Reg 18 consultation, the Parish Council supported the line being drawn along Kiln Barn Lane further east to protect East Malling Research Station and woodlands and countryside to the east of Wateringbury Road. However, we recognise that the proposed extension is the major part of the request we made, and we support it being carried forward into the Final Draft Local Plan for the Inspector.

The Malling area is on the very edge of the Green Belt and has provided major building sites in Peters Village, Holborough, Leybourne Park, Leybourne Chase, and Kings Hill. Larkfield in particular is now largely built over.

An analysis of the questionnaire responses from the open public meeting held on July 1st 2018, shows public support for the extension from West Malling residents. 212 (93.4%) respondents supported the proposed extension of the Green Belt to London Road and Wateringbury Road compared to 15 (6.6%) who opposed it.

We urge the Borough Council to resist calls to reduce the extension of the Green Belt and to retain the proposal as included within the Draft Plan.

Brickfields to Town Hill site

This site, which is in the Green Belt, has been designated for 110 homes. it did not appear in the Borough Council's previous Local Plan Draft.

However, the Parish Council has put forward a strong plea for part of this site to be used as a car park dedicated to the use of workers in the town. Our town has thrived against the odds when many others have gone to the wall. The challenges of free parking at nearby urban shopping centres and supermarkets, added to the proximity of Bluewater and the attraction of online shopping, present huge challenges to our High Street of independent shops of which we retain many.

We have over 130 businesses in the town and research commissioned by the Parish Council, a copy of which has been supplied to the Borough Council, demonstrated that there was a need for at least another 160 spaces to satisfy the total demand for parking for workers. Such a provision would relieve the current widespread pressure on residential and other community facilities such as the school. Workers' cars are preventing residents, their guests, tradesmen, social workers and parents from parking. Our investigation demonstrated that the Brickfields site was the best site in the town which could provide this facility.

The Council Planning Officers asked the Parish Council to provide evidence of the need for this workers' car park to justify the Borough Council putting a policy into the Local Plan which could provide the basis for a condition in any later Planning Consent to enable the delivery of the car park.

We have so far this year provided a copy of the research report, a letter of support from the Chamber of Commerce and to date 38 completed business questionnaires from retail and business concerns. All of these evidence the need for a business car park and support the creation of the facility. We have also supplied to the Borough Council a letter from a developer who is willing, subject to land price, to operate a wholly commercial car park on this site with only up to five houses supporting the construction costs.

The Parish Council's questionnaire following the July 1st 2018 meeting produced the result that 125 (59.8%) people oppose the development of this site for the construction of 110 houses compared to 84 (40.2%) who supported it. However, 165 residents (82%) supported the creation of a car park for workers to relieve the pressure on residential and community parking spaces in the town, in comparison with only 35 (17.5%) who opposed it.

West Malling Parish Council therefore believes that the community is willing to support the development of this Green Belt site only if it includes the creation of amenities for which there is a special and pressing local need. The Parish Council would support a mixed use development on this site, including an element of affordable housing, a business car park and a potential alternative site for a GP surgery (see below).

Accordingly we ask the Borough Council in the strongest possible terms to support the continued vitality of West Malling as a rural market town, by inserting an appropriate policy into the Local Plan for the development of the site.

GP Surgery

TMBC officers have held discussions with the CCG on the future of the West Malling Doctors Practice. The practice has said that they do not intend to change the catchment area and that West Malling is centrally placed within that catchment area. The surgery is up for sale but no sale has been concluded. The practice has expressed a preference to remain open in West Malling High Street. The practice intends to lease back the premises after sale pending relocation, but have advised us that none of the prospective purchasers is willing to allow them to stay on site in the long term. The practice patient list will clearly grow from its current 20,000 by 2031 since Leybourne Chase, Kings Hill North, East Malling New Road, Brickfields and Offham Road are all within its catchment area. This underlines the need for modern surgery facilities preferably in purpose built premises.

There is no clear view yet on the position with regard to the preferred option of the practice, in the short or long term, or funding available from the CCG. The Parish Council finds this situation extremely perplexing since it would seem that the opportunity to benefit from developer contributions may be being missed.

A High Street location is favoured by the majority of residents - 204 (96.2%) votes compared to 8 (3.8%) who took a view that other sites would be acceptable. However, 79 (61.2%) residents were happy to support the Brickfields site as a potential alternative location for the surgery compared to 50 (38.8%) who were not.

WMPC wants to see a modern surgery for West Malling and urges the Borough Council to use its best efforts to insert a policy into the Local Plan to enable that to happen.

Offham Road, Manor Farm

This site (currently in the Green Belt) was the most controversial for the West Malling Community. It was proposed for an 80 house development in the Reg 18 consultation draft. Many residents and the Parish Council opposed this suggestion on the grounds primarily of Green Belt status and of traffic generation onto Offham Road, which we felt was not able to take the additional traffic.

The Parish Council suggested to residents at that time, that an alternative option might be to develop the road frontage only for a small development of around 12 houses. The Parish Council has long wanted to see a small

development of affordable houses, outside the right to buy, for people with a need to work in the local area, or with long association with the area, but who are unable to afford the high housing prices in West Malling. We completed the first round of consultation with Action with Communities in Rural Kent (ACRK), and this confirmed majority support for the project and identified a need for around 10 to 12 homes.

We are therefore pleased to see the reduction from 80 to 12 homes along the frontage as the Parish Council suggested. At the July 1st public meeting with residents, the Parish Council once more suggested that these houses might be considered for a local rural exception site development with ACRK, as planned by the Parish Council to deliver some affordable housing to meet the exceptional community need to justify release of land from the Green Belt.

This proposal to build 12 houses was supported by 130 residents (58.6%) and opposed by 92 (41.4%). The proposal to bid for these houses to be affordable housing of the type described above was supported by 145 residents (69%), and opposed by 65 (31%).

West Malling Parish Council's position is therefore that we are prepared to support the proposal for 12 homes, provided the site is used to meet the exceptional need for low cost affordable homes for rent, outside the right to buy, for people with a long connection with West Malling as described above. We would want to see a policy within the Local Plan to support such a development. If this is not accepted, then we see no reason to lose the pleasant Green Belt rural edge to the town for such a small number of houses on the open market.

Further house building proposals

Kings Hill

West Malling Parish Council opposes this expansion of Kings Hill northward by approximately 1,000 houses.

We believe that:

- a) development will harm the formally designated Quiet Lanes network which recognises the peaceful countryside feel to the area.
- b) the proposed access route from "Kings Hill North" to the bypass at West Malling Station will run through the undeveloped part of Broadwater Farm, not only damaging the Conservation Area of New Barns and Broadwater, and detracting from the landscape, but clearly providing an easy access to develop the remainder of the site in future years.
- c) the proposed northern boundary of KHN, following the ridge line of Pikey Lane, will be a very intrusive hard edge to the development since it will be highly visible from the bypass and surrounding countryside.

However if the Borough Council is minded to approve it, we would prefer to see the boundary drawn further to the south by:

- a) incorporating Hoath Wood within the development (74 votes in favour)
- b) providing a landscape barrier to the north of the development to screen and separate it from the Conservation area of Broadwater and New Barns
- c) locating the playing fields of the schools on the northern boundary again to provide a softer transition into the countryside and to protect the setting of the Conservation Areas. (153 residents indicated they would favour this approach).

Additionally:

- d) there should be no vehicular access onto the rural lanes north of the housing area, and we believe the vitality of the retail area of Kings Hill will improve if the newly developed area is connected to it.
- e) as we have yet to see plans for the design of junction 4 and the A229/A20 junction, it is not possible for us to gauge their effect on the landscape or whether they will be able to absorb this amount of additional traffic.
- f) we are aware that Highways England has expressed concern about the capacity of junction 4 M20, and indeed the motorway itself and we shall be interested to receive their views.
- g) the A20 suffers daily hold ups and the Amey investigation into the capacity of junctions between Leybourne and Coldharbour demonstrated that the majority are at or above capacity already. Again, we will want to comment on the proposed designs to accommodate this additional development.

The public consultation responses demonstrate that the majority of residents agree with us on these points 183 (83.6%) West Malling respondents oppose this extension of 1,000 houses, compared to 36 (16.4%) who supported it.

Those who opposed it said that:

- a) Kings Hill was promoted on the basis that it would be limited by the boundaries of the airfield, and such undertakings should be honoured, particularly when ownership was in the hands of the County Council.
- b) the extension harms the Conservation Area of New Barns and Broadwater,
- c) the development harms the landscape of the area, being productive open fields with broad sweeping views to the North Downs and the Greensand ridge above Wateringbury.
- d) local roads are not capable of absorbing extra traffic, the A228, A20 and M20 (before the current works) being subject to congestion delays on a daily basis
- e) the access road as shown has a particularly damaging effect on the landscape, cutting across open fields, unrelated to current field patterns.

Forty Acres between Winterfield Lane, Lucks Hill and the bypass

This does not appear in the Plan and this is welcomed. WMPC objects to the proposal on Green Belt land (as proposed in the emerging Local Plan), traffic grounds and lack of need to fulfil the housing requirement. 108 (83%) West Malling residents opposed this in comparison with 22 (17%) who supported it.

Gladman development to rear of former Startled Saint pub.

The Parish Council opposes this development on Green Belt (emerging Local Plan) and traffic grounds, as the development is proposed to be accessed onto Kings Hill which is a very fast stretch of road at present. 112 (81%) residents opposed this in the questionnaire in comparison with 26 (19%) who supported it.

Lavenders Road

We understand that an outline application for up to 90 homes is to be submitted for "land east of Lavenders Road". WMPC opposes development on this land because it would damage the rural setting, character and approach to the town including Lavenders Road - a designated Quiet Lane; is on land designated as Green Belt in the emerging Local Plan; is unnecessary to meet housing need; and the proposed access onto Swan Street would cause congestion and create a traffic hazard. The development is unsuited due to the proximity of the 11 century Malling Abbey which is home to the silent order of Benedictine nuns, is a place of religious retreat, the home of St. Augustine's theological college and the Pilsdon Community which provides home to a group of vulnerable members of society.

NIAB/East Malling Research Station

The Plan removes for the time being at least a large area initially put forward for development between New Road and Kiln Barn Lane, Ditton. Officers seem to have accepted that the Research Station requires funds to keep operating, and so sites for 421 houses have been included. 205 houses are planned for New Road between the King and Queen and Bradbourne House, and a bigger site adjoining Larkfield Banks, apparently with access out onto New Road.

The issues here are:

- a) increased traffic through East Malling village
- b) the capacity of the New Road/A20 junction
- c) the effect on the setting of Bradbourne House, a Grade 1 Listed building of national importance and the surrounding historic landscape with its lake and Memorial gates, 30 acres of which are covenanted to the National
- d) the course of the East Malling and Ditton stream which lies beneath the site flooding and breaching the New Road wall on occasion. The Environment Agency views on this issue should be obtained.

115 (80%) West Malling residents oppose the building of 205 houses on New Road compared to 28 who did not 20%).

The rest of the whole of the EMRS and associated landholdings, from Kiln Barn Road to Hermitage Lane, have been placed into an Area of Opportunity (AOO) which means consideration for development will be given in the next Local Plan revision in perhaps five years' time.

WMPC notes that Bushey Wood, an area to the south west of Eccles village was an AOO in the existing plan, and in this revision part of the site is now designated for 900 houses.

The Parish Council would oppose the loss of any more land from East Malling Research which is a valued local employer, and the East Malling road network is in our view not able to take the additional pressure of more house building.

Martin Square.

9 homes are proposed on or adjacent to the KCC Larkfield Library site. There is concern as to how that will be achieved without loss of the library and mature trees which TMBC planted as mature specimens to line the square. WMPC would not resist a development proposal which replaced the library within a limited higher rise building, perhaps incorporating the public toilets at the same time.

North Pole Road

A small development area is proposed on this road, and it needs to be clear that the road will not be opened up to allow access from Kings Hill feeding traffic onto a dangerous junction and into the congested village centres of villages of East Malling and Wateringbury.

Other Issues

Viability of West Malling

We remind the Borough Council of our earlier request that the development of West Malling town should be supported by policies which:

- a) protect the greatest possible variety of types of retail development, including our Farmers' Market and High Street events
- b) encourage the development of rear access to retail shops from the High Street car park
- c) preserve and enhance the many alleyways which open from the High Street in order to retain a distinctive feature of the town, encourage micro-retail premises, and protect rapid access routes in emergency situations

Open Spaces, Infrastructure and Viability studies which will form part of the Plan are still awaited. The list of Open Spaces has still to be incorporated in the Appendices and when this occurs the Parish Council may submit its own list of Important Green Spaces.

A20 traffic

The congestion of the A20 is a matter of great concern to the Parish Council. The County Council is still preparing studies which will propose junction designs to absorb the traffic, and the Parish Council would like the opportunity to comment on those when they are published.

Aylesford Newsprint

With the withdrawal of the application for mixed commercial and residential use, this site continues as an employment site in the Plan, with access from Leybourne Way/ New Hythe Lane. AN went into liquidation, and the Receiver may make a new application perhaps on industrial/commercial land only, or could rely on the current planning status and sell off land for existing uses.

This may mean that the opportunity for opening Bellingham Way, the private estate road through the site, as an alternative to the A20 has been lost, and all traffic will have to use Leybourne Way as now. There is also the issue of greater traffic impact from modern commercial developments compared to the highly automated Aylesford paper mills.